NO. 90124-4

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON [Court of Appeals No. 68913-4-I]

LAKE WHATCOM RAILWAY COMPANY, a Washington corporation,

Appellant,

VS.

KARL ALAR and JEANINE ALAR, husband and wife; STEVEN SCOTT and JANE DOE SCOTT, husband and wife; et al.,

Respondents.

PETITIONER ALAR, ET AL.'S PETITION FOR REVIEW

DOUGLAS K. ROBERTSON, WSBA #16421 Belcher Swanson Law Firm, P.L.L.C. 900 Dupont Street Bellingham, Washington 98225-3105 Tel: (360) 734-6390 Fax: (360) 671-0753

Attorney for Petitioners Alar/Scott/Wens

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

A. Whether the Court of Appeals may disregard Washington State Supreme Court and Court of Appeals' published opinions controlling the interpretation of grants of railroad rights of way.

B. Whether the Court of Appeals may issue a decision on a matter that was waived on appeal by the Appellant and was not briefed by either party.

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. **Identification of Parties.** The appellant, Lake Whatcom Railway Company (LWRR) is a Washington corporation. Frank Culp

¹ CP 1036.

is the President of LWRR.² LWRR is the successor in interest to the railroad easements owned by Cascade Recreation Inc. Mr. Culp and Cascade Recreation were the defendants in <u>Veach v. Culp</u>.³

The Petitioners are three families: Karl & Jeanine Alar who purchased their property in 1999; Stephen & Cynthia Scott, Mr. Scott having purchased his property in 1998; and Roger & Ardis Wens who purchased their property in 1998.⁴ Petitioners will be collectively referred to as "Alar." Each family has built a home on its respective property.

B. **History of the Railroad.** ⁶ At the turn of the last century, a railroad was developed along the southern/eastern shore of Lake Whatcom. ⁷ To build this railroad, the predecessors in interest to Alar (the Zobrist family) granted to the railroad an easement for railroad purposes in 1901 across property now owned by Alar. This grant will

² CP 131, Finding of Fact 1.1.

³ CP 133, Conclusion of Law 2.2.

⁴CP 131, Findings of Fact 1.3-1.5.

⁵ Respondents Alar are the successors in interest to title to the real property owned by Richard Veach, Mary P. Veach and Forrest Solem, the Plaintiffs in <u>Veach v. Culp</u> CP 133, Conclusion of Law 2.2.

⁶ For unknown reasons, three separately paginated transcripts have been provided as the Verbatim Report of Proceedings. As a result, the VRP consists of at least three different pages which could be referred to as "RP at 1." The following references are therefore used:

^{• &}quot;RP Trial at ____" references the six volumes of consecutively paginated trial transcripts;

^{• &}quot;RP [date] at ____" references the hearing or court's ruling held on the date referenced in the citation.

⁷ CP 1036.

be referred to as the Zobrist Grant.⁸ The railroad line was built and operated from the early-1900's through 1970.⁹

In 1931, the railroad wished to relocate a portion of the line that was located on the Alar property. So in 1931, Alar's predecessor in interest, Mr. Byron, granted an additional railroad easement. This shall be referred to as the "Byron Grant." The 1931 Byron Grant specifically limited the grant to be for a railroad right of way: "...lying between the present right of way of said Railway Company for its Bellingham branch and a line parallel with and distant twenty-five (25) feet northerly, measured at right angles, from the center line of the relocated railroad..." The railroad never relocated the tracks and never made any use of the property described in the Byron Grant.

Burlington Northern stopped operating the railroad in approximately 1970.¹² It sold the tracks and the easements to Cascade Recreation, which subsequently transferred these to appellant LWRR.¹³ After Burlington Northern sold the rights, commercial railroad traffic stopped, never to occur again on the tracks

⁸ CP 132, Finding of Fact 1.6.

⁹ RP Trial at 78, lines 20-25.

¹⁰ CP 132, Finding of Fact 1.7.

¹¹ CP 121, Plaintiff's Trial Ex. 2.

¹² RP Trial at 28, lines 6-11.

¹³ CP 133-34, Conclusions of Law 2.1 and 2.3.

in question.¹⁴ The tracks in question are an isolated three-quarter mile section that is not connected to any other line.

From the early-1970's through the current date, only "hobby trains" have been operated on this section of track.¹⁵ These are propane powered "speeders" that operate to pull one or two work platforms that have been converted to carry a limited number of people.

C. <u>Veach v. Culp.</u> A dispute began between the predecessors in interest to this action. Mr. Culp (the principal with Cascade Recreation) erected a fence across the property, cutting off Alar's predecessor in interest's (Veach) access to the beach. In that litigation, Culp argued that both the Zobrist Grant and the Byron Grant conveyed fee simple title of the land to him. The matter was heard by the Whatcom County Superior Court, appealed to the Court of Appeals, and ultimately reviewed and reversed by the Washington State Supreme Court in <u>Veach v. Culp</u> 18.

After the supreme court decision, the matter was remanded to

¹⁴ RP Trial *at* 79, lines 1-9.

¹³ CP 248.

¹⁶92 Wn.2d 570, 599 P.2d 526 (1979).

¹⁷ RP Trial *at* 196, lines 8-10.

¹⁸ Id

the trial court.¹⁹ Upon remand and further motion practice, the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decree were entered in 1980 ("1980 Decree").²⁰ The crux of the Supreme Court opinion and the 1980 Decree was that the Zobrist Grant only conveyed an easement to the railroad, not a fee simple ownership.

Although the Whatcom County Superior Court had initially reviewed the issues regarding the Byron Grant, these issues were not addressed by the Washington State Supreme Court and not included in the 1980 Decree.²¹ Upon remand, the Trial Court specifically acknowledged that the scope of the Byron Grant was not resolved in that litigation.²²

D. **Current Dispute.** After decades of relative calm, disputes began in 2006 involving alleged encroachments by Alar, breach of the 1980 Decree by LWRR, and claims of damages arising out of the same.²³ Based upon these disputes, LWRR sued to have the ruling

¹⁹ Id

²⁰ Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 6; CP 133, Finding of Fact 1.11.

²¹ CP 66, Finding of Fact 1.11. Note that the issues relating to the Byron Grant were briefed by both parties to both the Court of Appeals and the Supreme Court. The Supreme Court simply did not address the Byron Grant in its decision.

Supreme Court simply did not address the Byron Grant in its decision.

22 See Exhibit 5 of CP 1079-1104. These were the findings of fact in support of the 1989 decree which explicitly discussed the 1977 judgment and stated "[t]he ownership of this narrow strip is not necessary to determine and settle the issues between the parties hereto."

²³ CP 133, Finding of Fact 1.12; CP 1038, Paragraphs 12-16.

of Veach v. Culp²⁴ reversed.²⁵ LWRR asserted again that it owned the Zobrist Grant property (and the Byron Grant property) in fee simple, directly in conflict with the Veach v. Culp²⁶ decision.²⁷

E. **Procedural Background.** The Trial Court held that Alar, et al. did own the property described in the Zobrist Grant in fee, subject to an easement for a railroad right of way. This ruling was based upon this court's decision in Veach v. Culp²⁸ and res judicata.

The rest of the claims were heard through bifurcated trials. The first trial was focused upon the ownership and scope of parties' rights arising out of the property described in the Zobrist Grant and the Byron Grant. During the first trial phase, the court took testimony and reviewed significantly more documents than at the summary judgment hearings. From that trial, Partial Findings of Fact and Partial Conclusions of Law were entered on September 24, 2010.²⁹ Regarding the latter, the Trial Court made very specific oral findings on the intent of the parties to the Byron Grant, and contrasted that with the Zobrist Grant. Upon this in-depth analysis, the Trial Court held that the property described in the Byron Grant was, like the

²⁴ <u>Id</u>.
²⁵ CP 1035-66.
²⁶ <u>Id</u>.
²⁷ CP 1040, Plaintiff's Complaint, Paragraphs 17-24.
²⁸ <u>Id</u>.

Zobrist Grant property, owned in fee by Alar, subject to an easement for a railroad right of way.

The decision of the Trial Court in the second portion of the case involved determination of damages and the scope of both parties' rights pursuant to the railroad right of way over both the Zobrist Grant and the Byron Grant. Those decisions are not pertinent to this Petition for Review.

LWRR appealed a multiplicity of decisions to the Court of Appeals. In its briefing, LWRR did not provide any briefing (either factual information or legal analysis) regarding the Trial Court's decision that the Byron Grant should be considered a conveyance of an easement, not a fee. In its response, Alar pointed out this failure, confirming that LWRR had waived the issue.

The Court of Appeals ruled for Alar on all issues briefed.³⁰ Unfortunately, the Court of Appeals then included in the Opinion that the Byron Grant conveyed a fee interest to LWRR, despite the fact that LWRR failed to brief the issue. This is the sole part of the decision upon which Petitioner requests review.

The tracks were never relocated as contemplated in the Byron

²⁹ CP 130-36.

Note that the Court of Appeals stated that only four issues were before the court. That is confirmation that the multiplicity of other issues in LWRR's Notice of Appeal

Grant. In fact, LWRR has never used and/or improved the property described in the Byron Grant. Alar and its predecessor in interest have cleared and contoured the area, planted grass for a lawn, and built a fence on it. Alar built its homes adjacent to and landward from the Byron Grant land. If this land were changed from an easement to a fee, the Alar family would be cut off from their waterfront property.

Appendix B is the trial exhibit showing the location of the land in the Zobrist Grant and the Byron Grant.

V. ARGUMENT

There are two different issues regarding the necessity for review. The Opinion is contrary to both this Court's and the Court of Appeal's decisions regarding:

- Interpretation of conveyance documents to determine whether a grant of a railroad right of way is a fee or an easement;
- A party's waiver of issues on appeal and whether matters are properly before the Court of Appeals.

A. Determination that the Byron Grant conveyed a fee interest is contrary to current Supreme Court and Court of Appeals decisions. RAP 13.4(b)(1) and (2).

1. The Opinion is contrary to the standards established by

were waived because of appellant's failure to brief the issues.

Brown.31

The Washington Supreme Court stated in **Brown**:

In this case, where the original parties utilized the statutory warranty form deed and the granting clauses convey definite strips of land, we must find that the grantors intended to convey fee simple title unless additional language in the deeds clearly and expressly limits or qualifies the interest conveyed.³²

The Court of Appeals strayed from this black letter law when it ruled that the grant was a fee: the 1931 Byron Grant did, in fact, specifically limit the grant to "lying between the present right of way of said Railway Company for its Bellingham branch and a line parallel with and distant twenty-five (25) feet northerly, measured at right angles, from the center line of the re-located railroad..." The language of the deed specifically qualified the interest conveyed to the mere re-location of the existing "right of way." And the existing right of way is simply an easement.³⁴

Given this specific language in the grant, it was the appellate court's duty to evaluate the entire document and surrounding factors to determine the parties' intent. Instead of doing so, Division I relied solely upon the form of the conveyance. This Opinion is contrary to

³¹State v. Brown, 130 Wn.2d 430, 924 P.2d 908 (1996).

³³ CP 121, Plaintiff's trial Ex. 2.

existing case law.35

2. The Opinion failed to analyze the <u>Swan</u>³⁶ factors as adopted by the Washington Supreme Court.

The foundation of whether a grant is a fee or an easement is the determination of the original parties' intent.³⁷ To discern the parties' intent, Washington courts have long relied upon the review and analysis of a number of factors surrounding the grant.³⁸ As noted above, such analysis is required because of the clear language qualifying the grant to be just for the relocation of a railroad right of way. This pattern of analysis has been used by our courts for over 60 years; yet it was completely ignored by the Court of Appeals in the current case.

³⁵ See <u>Brown</u> (cited above), <u>Veach</u> (cited above), <u>Swan v. O'Leary</u>, 37 Wn.2d 533, 225 P.2d 199 (1950).

^{36 &}lt;u>Id</u>.

37 Brown v. State, *supra*.

³⁸ As stated by the court in <u>Brown</u>, the factors are: "(1) whether the deed conveyed a strip of land, and did not contain additional language relating to the use or purpose to which the land was to be put, or in other ways limiting the estate conveyed; (2) whether the deed conveyed a strip of land and limited its use to a specific purpose; (3) whether the deed conveyed a right of way over a tract of land, rather than a strip thereof; (4) whether the deed granted only the privilege of constructing, operating, or maintaining a railroad over the land; (5) whether the deed contained a clause providing that if the railroad ceased to operate, the land conveyed would revert to the grantor; (6) whether the consideration expressed was substantial or nominal; and (7) whether the conveyance did or did not contain a habendum clause, and many other considerations suggested by the language of the particular deed. [citation omitted] In addition to the language of the deed, we will also look at the circumstances surrounding the deed's execution and the subsequent conduct of the parties." <u>Id</u>.at 438.

The trial court analyzed all of the Swan³⁹ factors during the first portion of the trial. Judge Snyder reviewed all of the Swan⁴⁰ factors in detail, and based upon the documents he reviewed and the testimony taken, he concluded that the 1931 Byron Grant was an easement. The Court of Appeals failed to undertake any such analysis and failed to elucidate any basis to hold that Judge Snyder's determination was incorrect.

The key to the determination of intent is that the purpose of the 1931 Byron Grant was to simply relocate the existing railroad right of way. Because this Court in Veach⁴¹ held that the existing railroad right of way (the Zobrist Grant) was a mere easement, the relocation could only be for just an easement, and certainly not a fee interest.

In Swan, 42 the court was faced with a document that apparently conveyed one portion of land in fee and the other portion by easement. The court stated:

It seems inconceivable that the parties, having in mind the use of the strip of land for the same purpose, would convey fee simple title to one, but in the case of the other only a right of way. 43

That same logic applies here: it is inconceivable that either the

³⁹ Supra.

⁴¹ Supra. ⁴² Supra.

Railroad or Byron intended to grant a small fee simple strip of land abutting a mere easement under the circumstances surrounding the Byron Grant.

Note that this court in <u>Veach</u>,⁴⁴ when it reviewed this exact legal issue, relied almost entirely upon <u>Swan</u>.⁴⁵ It was a violation of the Law of the Case doctrine for the Court of Appeals to now apply some different legal standard upon remand and subsequent appeal.⁴⁶

The Opinion is directly contrary to the holding in Swan,⁴⁷

Brown⁴⁸ and the myriad of other cases requiring a determination of the intent of the parties. Review should be granted and the Opinion reversed to make it consistent with controlling cases.

3. Conclusion. The Court of Appeals has diverted from well settled case law to define a new and different path for interpreting grants to railroads — the Appellate Court looked only to part of the language of the conveying document and disregarded all indicia of the parties' intent. This path is contrary to decades of well-established case law, and serves an injustice to the Alars.

B. Consideration of Issue Waived by Appellant Contrary to

📅 Supra.

⁴³ <u>Swan</u> *at* 537.

⁴⁵ Veach *at* 573-575.

⁴⁶ Folsom v. County of Spokane, 111 Wn.2d 256, 759 P.2d 1196, (1988).

Supreme Court and Court of Appeals Opinion.

The issue of whether the 1931 Byron Deed conveyed an interest in fee simple or an easement was not properly before the Court of Appeals. Appellant LWRR waived the issue for appeal by failing to address any alleged error by the trial court when interpreting the 1931 conveyance. LWRR did not mention the specifics of the 1931 Byron Grant, reference the language of the deed, or discuss the legal factors affecting the parties' intent. LWRR failed to brief or mention any error with Judge Snyder's review of the Swan factors and raised no legal basis to assert his determination that the 1931 Byron Deed was an easement was error. Failure to properly raise the issue in its opening brief waived the issue on appeal.

In this matter, LWRR identified 14 issues for appeal. Yet it failed to brief a wide number of these issues in its opening brief. Alar properly identified that LWRR had waived any appeal regarding the interpretation of the 1931 Byron Deed in its brief, as well as all other legal issues LWRR failed to brief. The Court of Appeals confirmed

⁴⁸ Supra.

⁴⁹ Supra.

⁵⁰ LWRR did not raise any of these issues until its Reply Brief, by which time Alar was powerless to address and the waiver had occurred.

⁵¹ <u>Hall v. Feigenbaum,</u> Wn. App. ____, 319 P.3d, 61 (2014). Interestingly, the case was argued before the Court of Appeals the same day as this matter. <u>Baumgardner</u> v. American Motors, 83 Wn.2d 751, 759, 522 P.2d 829 (1974).

this waiver by reviewing only four issues despite LWRR assigning 14 issues for appeal. The Court of Appeals inappropriately reviewed the issue regarding the Byron Grant, for it too was waived.

Review by the Court of Appeals of an issue that was waived is contrary to both Supreme Court and Court of Appeals decisions.⁵² This review was severely prejudicial to Alar, for it never had the opportunity to brief the matter. The Court of Appeals' consideration and ruling on this issue was contrary to all applicable case law.

C. Resolution of Conflict is of Substantial Public Interest. RAP 13.4(b)(4).

Prior to the Opinion, the interpretation of deeds regarding railroad rights of way focused on the **intent** of the parties by using the factors enumerated in <u>Veach</u>, ⁵³ <u>Swan</u> ⁵⁴ and <u>Brown</u>. ⁵⁵ The Opinion calls into question these factors, instead focusing on "form over substance." A court may now simply look to the form of the document and no longer look to the <u>Swan</u> ⁵⁶ factors to determine the parties' intent. Given the hundreds, if not thousands, of miles of railroad rights of way in this state, this has tremendous public impact and

⁵² <u>Id</u>

⁵³ Supra.

⁵⁴ Supra

^{໑໑} Supra

[∞] Supra

importance. Is a trial court to look at the intent of the parties using the <u>Veach</u>,⁵⁷ <u>Swan</u>⁵⁸ and <u>Brown</u>⁵⁹ factors? Or instead, does the form of the deed take precedence as stated in the unpublished Opinion in this case? These now unsettled questions of public importance require that review be accepted.

VI. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, this Court is respectfully requested to accept this Petition for Review.