IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

Respondent is Lake Whatcom Railway Company, a 

Washington Corporation, and is owned, in part, by Frank Culp. 

CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Lake Whatcom Railway Company (LWRW) respectfully 

requests that the Washington Supreme Court deny Alar, et al's, 

Petition for Review of the Court of Appeals, Division I, unpublished 

opinion (motion to publish) in Lake Whatcom Railway Co. v. Alar, 

et. a/., Appeal No. 68913-4-I, decided on February 3, 2014. 

INTRODUCTION 

Petitioners raise two issues in their Petition. Neither are 

grounds for review under RAP 13.4. 

First, Petitioners incorrectly argue that the decision of 

Division I of the Court of Appeals disregarded published opinions 

controlling the interpretation of grants of railroad rights of way 

when it determined that the 1931 deed conveyed fee simple title 

and not an easement. Consistent with published case law, the 

Court of Appeals correctly determined that the 1931 deed was 

intended to convey fee simple title. See Ray v. King County, 120 

Wn.App. 564, 86 P.3d 183 (Div. 1, 2004), review denied, 152 
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Wn.2d 1027, 101 P.3d 421 (2004); Brown v. State, 130 Wn.2d 430, 

924 P.2d 908 (1996). 

LWRW admits that the Court of Appeals did ignore published 

opinions when it "interpreted" the 1901 Deed. However, 

Petitioners did not appeal the Court of Appeals decision holding 

that the legal effect of the 1901 deed is controlled by res judicata. 1 

Washington common law has changed in the last 25 years. The 

language of the 1901 Deed, if considered under current common 

law, would require a decision consistent with and supportive of the 

trial court's 1977 decision(s); i.e., the 1901 deed conveyed fee 

simple title and not an easement. Again, construction of the 1901 

deed is not an issue appealed by Petitioner. 

Second, Petitioners argue, again incorrectly, that Division I 

of the Court of Appeals lacked authority to determine whether the 

1931 deed conveyed fee simple title or an easement. Petitioner 

claims reviewable error because the Court of Appeals disagreed 

"with the trial court's conclusion that the 1931 deed conveyed an 

1 "On June 24, 2009, the trial court granted Alar's motion for partial summary 
judgment, ruling that under res judicata, the court's decision in Veach controlled 
the 1901 deed's legal effect." Lake Whatcom Railway Co. v. Ala~ et a/. at 5. 
"Here, the court properly applied res judicata to the court's interpretation in 
Veach of the 1901 deed's legal effect." !d. at 13. 
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easement interest rather than a fee simple . . .. " Lake Whatcom 

Railway Co. v. Alar, et. a!. at 2. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

LWRW operates an excursion train along the shore of Lake 

Whatcom, in Whatcom County, WA. Frank Culp is LWRW's 

president. Karl and Jean Alar, Stephen and Cindy Scott, and Roger 

and Ardis Wens (collectively Alar) own three parcels of land 

abutting the lake that the railway bisects. This lawsuit involves the 

nature of the railway's property interest created by two 

conveyances, one in 1901 and one in 1931. LWRW, formerly 

Cascade Recreation Inc., acquired all rights included in the 1901 

and 1931 deeds in 1972. Lake Whatcom Railway Co. v. Alar, eta!. 

at 2-3. 

In its Complaint, LWRW alleged that beginning before 2008, 

Alar and Scott dumped dirt on its railroad tracks, interfered with 

railroad operations, denied access to the right of way, and 

otherwise created safety issues on its right of way. CP 1035; 1038-

39. LWRW claimed damages against Alar and Scott for trespass. 

CP 1039. LWRW asked the trial court to quiet title under both 

deeds in LWRW. 

3 



At trial, LWRW claimed that the maintenance and operation 

of its tracks were subject to federal regulations. RP 33. Mr. Culp 

admitted, in response to a question by counsel for the Alars, that 

LWRW was regulated by the federal government. RP 200. Jarvis 

Frederick, the neighbors' expert, testified at trial that LWRW was a 

Class I or Class II railroad subject to regulations issued by the 

federal government. RP 383. The Court of Appeals held that res 

judicata barred LWRW from re-litigating the 1901 deed and that 

the 1931 deed conveyed a fee simple interest. Lake Whatcom 

Railway Co. v. Alar, et a/. at 14, 17. 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES 

1. Whether the Court of Appeals correctly determined that 

the 1931 Deed was intended to convey a fee simple. [Yes] 

2. Whether the Court of Appeals had authority to determine 

whether the 1931 deed conveyed a fee simple or an easement. 

[Yes] 

LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. Fee Simple Title. 

In 1931, Byron "conveyed and warranted" to Northern 

Pacific Railway Company [LWRW's predecessor], by a Warranty 
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Deed, "the following described real estate situate in the County of 

Whatcom and State of Washington, to wit: ... Dated this 29th day 

of June, A.D. 1931." Plaintiff's Exhibit 1. The Court of Appeals, in 

its unpublished opinion, citing Brown v. State, held: 

In this case, because the original parties utilized the 
statutory warranty form deed and the granting clause 
conveys a definite strip of land, we hold that the 
grantors intended to convey fee simple title unless 
additional language in the deed clearly and expressly 
limits or qualifies the interest conveyed. The 1931 deed 
contains no language clearly and expressly limiting or 
qualifying the interest conveyed. Therefore, we hold that 
the 1931 deed conveyed a fee simple interest. 

Lake Whatcom Railway Co. v. Alar, et. a!. at 14. This holding is 

consistent with Brown. 

In general, when construing a deed, the intent of the 
parties is of paramount importance and the court's duty 
to ascertain and enforce. Swan v. O'Leary, 37 Wash.2d 
533, 535, 225 P.2d 199 (1950); Zobrist v. Cu!p, 95 
Wash.2d 556, 560, 627 P.2d 1308 (1981). In this case, 
where the original parties utilized the statutory warranty 
form deed and the granting clauses convey definite 
strips of land, we must find that the grantors intended to 
convey fee simple title unless additional language in the 
deeds clearly and expressly limits or qualifies the 
interest conveyed. 

Brown v. State, 130 Wn.2d at 437. "Whether a conveyance is one 

of fee title or an easement is a conclusion of law as to the effect of 

a deed." Ray v. King County, 120 Wn.App. 564, 571, 86 P.3d 183 
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(Div 1, 2004), review denied, 152 Wn.2d 1027, 101 P.3d 421 

(2004). Challenged conclusions of law are legal issues reviewed de 

novo. Robel v. Roundup Corp., 148 Wn.2d 35, 43, 59 P.3d 611 

(2002). 

B. Waiver. 

Petitioners argue that: "The issue of whether the 1931 

Byron Deed conveyed an interest in fee simple or an easement was 

not properly before the Court of Appeals. Appellant LWRW waived 

the issue for appeal by failing to address any alleged error by the 

trial court when interpreting the 1931 conveyance." Petitioner Alar, 

et al.'s Petition for Review, p. 13. As authority, Petitioner cites the 

following legal principle: "We deem an issue not briefed to be 

waived." Hall v. Feigenbaum, 178 Wn.App. 811, 817, 319 P.3d 61, 

64 (Div. 1, 2014). 

First, Petitioners incorrectly argue that the nature of the 

1931 deed was not adequately briefed or argued. Then, Petitioners 

incorrectly attempt to argue that the above legal principal provides 

no discretion for an appellate court to decide legal issues not 

briefed or argued. However, appellate courts have both the right 

and duty to determine legal issues necessary to the issues raised in 
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any appeal. The Court of Appeals correctly determined that: "This 

lawsuit involves the nature of the railway's property interest 

created by two conveyances, one in 1901 and one in 1931." Lake 

Whatcom Railway Co. v. Alar, et. a/. at 2. Assuming the 1931 deed 

was not adequately argued or briefed by LWRW, Division I had the 

right to decide the intent of the 1931 deed because the nature of 

the grant was necessary to the issues on appeal. 

This court generally reviews only those issues raised by 
the parties in their petition and answer. RAP 13.7(b). 
This rule is subject to numerous exceptions. Maynard 
Inv. Co. v. McCann, 77 Wash.2d 616, 621, 465 P.2d 657 
(1970). One such exception provides that "[t]his court 
has the inherent discretionary authority to reach issues 
not briefed by the parties if those issues are necessary 
for decision." City of Seattle v. McCready, 123 Wash.2d 
260, 269, 868 P.2d 134 (1994). 

Blaney v. Int7 Assn of Machinists, 151 Wn.2d 203, 213, 87 P.3d 

757 (2004). 

The 1931 Deed was briefed and argued in LWRW's Opening 

Brief, Petitioner's Brief, and LWRW's Reply Brief. 

1. LWRW Opening Brief: 

The 1931 Deed, "conveyed and warranted" to the 
Northern Pacific Railway Company all the property: 

[A] line parallel with and distant twenty-five 
(25) feet northerly, measured at right angles, 
from the center line of the re-located railroad 

7 



of said Railway Company as the same is now 
staked out and to be constructed over and 
acres said premises, containing fifteen 
hundredths (0.15) acres, more or less. 
Trial Exhibit 2. 

Appellant LWRW's Opening Brief, p. 1. 

In Veach v. Cu!p, on January 6, 1977, the Whatcom 
County Superior Court entered Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law, which found, in part: ... 
• The 1931 Deed to Lake Whatcom Railway's 

predecessor Bellingham Bay & Eastern Railroad "is in 
fee language and the use of the property is not 
limited to railway purposes, nor does it mention right 
of way." 

And concluded: ... 

• Lake Whatcom Railway is the owner in fee simple of 
the land embraced within its right of way, being fifty 
feet on each side of the original in line of the 
Bellingham Bay & Eastern Railway [1901 Deed] and 
25 feet from the center line of the projected 
relocation of the Northern Pacific Railway Company 
as recited in the Byron [1931] deed. 

!d. at 4. 

If it is determined that the prior cases and 
decisions preclude further analysis of the 1901 Deed, the 
same analysis and conclusion should be applied to the 
1931 Deed. While applying the concept of res judicata 
to the 1901 Deed, the trial court ignored the fact that 
the nature of the grant in the 1931 Deed was previously 
determined by the trial court in its January 6, 1976 
finding of fact IX, as follows: "That deed is in fee 
language and the use of the property is not limited to 
railway purposes, nor does it mention right of way." See 
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Appendix "B." Further, the trial court's 1976 Conclusion, 
as regards to the 1931 Deed, was not appealed. That 
conclusion was: Veach has "no easements, reversions or 
rights to the land within the boundaries of defendant 
corporation's right of way." /d. 

If this Court finds that res judicata is applicable to 
the Veach v. Culp litigation, res judicata should be 
applied uniformly to both the 1901 and 1931 deeds. 

Id. at 28-9. And: 

E. Current Common Law Should be Applied to Both 
Deeds .... 

In Ray v. King County, 120 Wn.App. 564, 86 P.3d 
183 (Div. 1, 2004), this Court extensively laid out the 
analysis, as established by Brown v. State, 130 Wn.2d 
430, 924 P.2d 908 (1996), for determining whether a 
railroad was granted a right of way as an easement or 
fee. The analysis utilized in Veach v. Culp was changed 
by Brown v. State (supra) and criticized by this Court in 
Ray v. King County, 120 Wn.App at 578. "In Veach v. 
Culp the court construed language in the relevant 
portion of the deed, but did not consider the full range 
of factors that the supreme court [sic] in Brown later 
articulated for characterizing the nature of the interest 
conveyed." !d. 

Id. at 35-6. 

Before making the above arguments in its briefing, LWRW 

assigned error to the findings and conclusions of the trial court